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FORGING FORWARD

ERB accomplished its repositioning in 2009 -10 by promoting the “Manpower Development Scheme” with a number of ground-breaking initiatives which established solid foundation for engaging major reforms.

The fast moving and colourful streams of light show ERB’s commitment in providing dynamic, creative and effective training courses and services to our service targets, and forging forward together with our trainees and the society for a better future.
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Structure of the Employees Retraining Board

Employees Retraining Board

· Course and Service Development Committee

· Course Vetting Committee

· Finance and Administration Committee

· Public Relations and Promotion Committee

· Quality Assurance and Review Committee

Membership of the Employees Retraining Board
As at 31 March 2011
Chairman: Dr. NG Tat-lun, BBS, JP

Vice-Chairman: Mrs. Agnes MAK TANG Pik-yee, MH, JP
Representative of Employers: Mr. Stephen YUEN Ching-bor

Representative of Employers: Mr. Paul CHONG, Kin-lit, MH

Representative of Employers: Mr. William LEUNG, Wing-cheung, BBS, JP

Representative of Employers: Mr. YU Pang-chun, SBS, JP 

Representative of Employees: Mr. LAU Chin-shek, JP

Representative of Employees: Ms. Juan LEUNG Chung-yan

Representative of Employees: Mr. CHENG Kai-ming

Representative of Employees: Mr. SIN Kai-ming, MH
Person Connected with Vocational Training and Retraining or Manpower Planning: Mr. YEUNG Ka-sing, SBS, JP

Person Connected with Vocational Training and Retraining or Manpower Planning: Ms. Virginia CHOI Wai-kam

Person Connected with Vocational Training and Retraining or Manpower Planning: Professor Danny WONG Shek-nam
Person Connected with Vocational Training and Retraining or Manpower Planning: Dr. Carrie WILLIS, SBS, MBE, JP (Executive Director of Vocational Training Council)
Government Representative: Mr. Paul TANG Kwok-wai, JP (Permanent Secretary for Labour and Welfare)
Government Representative: Mrs. Cherry TSE LING Kit-ching, JP (Commissioner for Labour)
Membership of Committees of the Employees Retraining Board
Course and Service Development Committee

Convenor

Mr. Stephen YUEN Ching-bor
Members

Mrs. Agnes MAK TANG Pik-yee, MH, JP

Mr. Paul CHONG Kin-lit, MH

Ms. Juan LEUNG Chung-yan

Professor Danny WONG Shek-nam

Mr. YU Pang-chun, SBS, JP

Representative of Permanent Secretary for Labour and Welfare

Representative of Commissioner for Labour

Representative of Executive Director of Vocational Training Council

Course Vetting Committee

Convenor

Mr. Paul CHONG Kin-lit, MH
Members

Mr. YEUNG Ka-sing, SBS, JP
Mr. CHENG Kai-ming
Representative of Permanent Secretary for Labour and Welfare

Representative of Commissioner for Labour

Finance and Administration Committee

Convenor

Mrs. Agnes MAK TANG Pik-yee, MH, JP
Members

Mr. YEUNG Ka-sing, SBS, JP

Ms. Virginia CHOI Wai-kam

Mr. CHENG Kai-ming
Mr. William LEUNG Wing-cheung, BBS, JP
Representative of Permanent Secretary for Labour and Welfare

Representative of Commissioner for Labour

Co-opted Members
Mr. David YU Hon-to

Mr. Patrick HO Pak-tai

Mr. WONG Kin

Public Relations and Promotion Committee
Convenor

Ms. Virginia CHOI Wai-kam
Members

Mr. SIN Kai-ming, MH
Representative of Commissioner for Labour

Co-opted Members

Mr. Forrest CHEUNG Len-sum
Ms. Betty CHAN Shui-fong
Quality Assurance and Review Committee

Convenor

Mr. YEUNG Ka-sing, SBS, JP
Members

Ms. Juan LEUNG Chung-yan

Mr. SIN Kai-ming, MH

Representative of Commissioner for Labour

Representative of Executive Director of Vocational Training Council

Chairman’s Message

To lead the repositioned ERB in the implementation of new initiatives, delivering an increased variety of courses and appropriate services, and embracing the challenges.

“To know something of everything and everything of something.”

This is the T-learning model that I always keep at the forefront of my mind. Not only does it advance your profession, but it also spurs significant developments, empowering you to be more adaptable to changes. I believe our trainees can translate this learning model into practice by upgrading their skills or acquiring skills across the border. In this way they can move up their career ladders or branch out into other disciplines.

In April 2009, when I accepted the appointment as Chairman of the Employees Retraining Board (ERB), Hong Kong was going through the consequences of the global financial turmoil. My task was to lead the repositioned ERB in the implementation of new initiatives, especially delivering an increased variety of courses and appropriate services at a difficult time like that. This was both a personal and a corporate challenge.

I was appointed Vice-Chairman of ERB in 2005, and in the four years since then I have actively participated in ERB work and witnessed its development and transformation. Following a decision made by the Government in October 2007, ERB began in December 2007 to expand the scope of its service targets to include younger and better-educated people. In mid-2008, we repositioned ourselves and launched the “Manpower Development Scheme”, which serves as a strong foundation for local manpower development. We were unfazed by the suspension of the levy on employers of foreign domestic helpers for five years at the end of 2008, and remain fully committed in spite of the drastic changes,
demonstrating
our
flexibility
and
positive thinking. From the time I was appointed Chairman, and capitalizing on the foundation laid by my predecessor, we embarked on the path of reform. We are committed to improving manpower training across various sectors, not only helping trainees find jobs in relief of their immediate difficulties, but introducing the element of sustainable development in our services to assist trainees in obtaining professional qualifications, hence enabling local citizens to upgrade their skills, which in turn drives our society to progress.

The past year’s development has seen ERB move into the fast lane, because our course development has grown by leaps and bounds. Almost 35% of the 500 courses we provided this year were newly-developed, and our courses are geared towards the attainment of professional accreditation, so that the qualifications gained by graduate trainees receive positive recognition from employers. The launch of “Skills Upgrading Scheme Plus” turns a new page in ERB history, as we now provide on-the-job training for employees, enabling them to advance their skills or be equipped with multiple ones.

In addition to developing new courses and services, ERB has been expanding its strategic partnership network.
The
year saw the establishment of “Industry Consultative Networks”, the introduction of more training bodies with a variety of specialties, the strengthening of our connection with various sectors and the launch of the “ERB Manpower Developer Award Scheme”. This demonstrates that only by working together can we build a new ERB that breathes and grows with society.

ERB is committed to providing a variety of courses and services geared towards market needs. We encourage both the unemployed and employees to update their skills and take up life-long learning, so as to better equip themselves for new opportunities. I fully endorse the ERB vision, and I am sure that by working together with the Government, employers and other stakeholders we can build a flexible, high-quality labour force with resilience, forging a solid foundation for the long-term development of Hong Kong.

I set these high standards for ERB, because I do believe that knowledge reshapes our destiny, so I hope that we all continue updating and upgrading ourselves for a better tomorrow.

Chairman

Employees Retraining Board

Executive Director’s Overview

ERB will continue to commit ourselves to better prepare Hong Kong people to adapt to changes and to embrace the challenges and opportunities bestowed by the future.

Over the past few years, the Employees Retraining Board (ERB) has undergone major reforms and engaged in a number of ground-breaking initiatives.

In his October 2007 Policy Address, the Chief Executive resolved to expand the scope of ERB service targets, and we began implementation of this decision in December 2007. In January 2008, we published a public consultative document outlining the blueprint for future development. In July 2008, we embarked on a new era and launched our “Manpower Development Scheme” with new courses progressively appearing, and October 2008 saw the first “Training-cum-Employment Resource Centre” opened. December 2008 saw ERB’s largest ever expo – “Training and Career Expo” held, and in February 2009, a new service hotline “182 182” was set up. March 2009 saw the introduction of the “Smart Living” Scheme, and in July 2009, the “Skills Upgrading Scheme Plus” (SUS Plus) was launched. In September 2009, a “ERB Course Enrolment Day” was held, and from September to November 2009, ERB conducted a series of large scale promotion events focusing on industries. December 2009 saw the launch of the “ERB Manpower Developer Award Scheme”, and in January 2010, the second “ERB Manpower Development Scheme Award Presentation Ceremony” was held. This is to name but a few of the multifarious events.

ERB accomplished its repositioning in 2009-10 by promoting the “Manpower Development Scheme”.

The Chief Executive-in-Council endorsed the final recommendations of the strategic review on the Future Directions of the Employees Retraining Board on 31 March 2009. To this end, and believing our services should be people-oriented, ERB is implementing four key areas in phases, and these areas are:

(1)
Strengthen research, expand networks, fortify recognition, promote employment;

(2)
Provide optimal training, enhance quality, offer innovative services, help people help themselves;

(3)
Invest in people, construct learning pathways, support enterprises, create win-win situations; and

(4)
Promote self-actualization, develop individual potential, be caring and understanding, instil social harmony.

In respect of course development, ERB endeavours to uphold a “market-driven, employment-oriented” principle. We provided more than 120,000 training places in 2009 -10 to meet the career aspirations and demand of multiple service targets. Through the network of 76 appointed training bodies, some 500 job-specific skills courses and generic skills courses were offered in an effort to address market needs. During the year, ERB launched around 200 new courses covering 30 industries, including Tourism, Exhibition, Logistics, Property Management, Information Technology, Design, Merchandising, Healthcare, Hotel, Retail, Recreation & Sports, Beauty Care, and Catering.

Amongst the many new courses offered, the SUS Plus launched in July 2009 marks a step forward in our training spectrum. Over the years, ERB has been serving mainly middle-aged unemployed people of lower education attainment, but despite offering them job-specific courses and placement follow-up service, we have not been in a position to help them upgrade their skills after taking up employment. With this in mind, SUS Plus complements our training system for our trainees to a much greater extent. The Scheme encourages employees to enhance their industry-specific professional knowledge, as well as to develop diverse skills in different areas. It also provides elementary training modules enabling those seeking a change in career to acquire knowledge in other fields.

To enhance recognition among employers of our graduate trainees as a whole, ERB courses are moving in the direction of accreditation. Our courses are accredited by the Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic and Vocational Qualifications, included in the Government’s Qualifications Register and recognized by the Qualifications Framework. We also develop courses with professional accreditation aimed at helping our trainees to embark on professional pathways.

Some 30 of the courses launched during the year lead to professional certifications. They encompass 13 industries and are delivered in two formats, one entitled “One Test Two Certificates” leading to professional qualifications and the ERB Certificate at one sitting, while the other prepares trainees to sit public examinations. ERB also provides National Occupational Qualification Certificate courses to equip trainees with National Occupational Qualifications to expand their employment horizons.

At the time of global financial turmoil, it is important to engage our service targets on ERB courses to upgrade their job-specific skills and enable them to overcome adversity, which led us to hold a brand new two-day “ERB Course Enrolment Day” providing up-to-date and detailed information on our courses, and one-stop service for on-site application and enrolment for eligible applicants. In addition, we held three sessions of “3Q Seminar Series”, with experts and celebrities invited to share with the audiences their wisdom in facing adversity positively and overcoming it with optimism. A brand new ERB magazine is published regularly with articles and columns to promote positive attitude and encourage people to value each day and lead a fruitful and meaningful life.

ERB is dedicated to provide appropriate and relevant services for our service targets. We established the “Training-cum-Employment Resource Centre” in Sham Shui Po on a pilot basis. Acting as a window for ERB courses and services, the Centre offers training and employment services at three levels to cater for various clients in West Kowloon. Together with the “East Kowloon Training Resource Centre”, they served more than 630,000 clients during the year. In addition, we expanded our “Smart Living” Scheme, a free referral platform for Home, Health and Care services, to further expand the market and job opportunities for our graduate trainees, and during the year it received over 50,000 job vacancies.

To keep abreast of the latest needs and skills requirements in the market, we are establishing in stages a number of “Industry Consultative Networks” (ICNs), with members who are industry representatives having insights into and commitment to the development of the industry and its manpower. ICNs also help to reinforce our partnership and collaboration with industries, apart from enhancing our training courses. During the year, nine ICNs were set up, and the plan is to form around 30 of them by the end of 2011.

In December 2009, ERB launched the “ERB Manpower Developer Award Scheme”, the first accreditation system in Hong Kong focusing on manpower training and development to acknowledge organizations which have demonstrated outstanding accomplishments in manpower training and development. We hope that the Scheme will integrate these manpower developers and promote ERB’s mission of manpower development as a core value in the society, by encouraging organizations to attach importance to staff training and development, thus improving Hong Kong’s competitiveness.

People are our most valuable asset and the key to the development of the society. We believe implementing manpower training and development strategy will help people have more control of their careers and their future, and that will in turn foster family harmony and sustainable development of the society. ERB will continue to commit ourselves to better prepare Hong Kong people to adapt to changes and to embrace the challenges and opportunities bestowed by the future.

Executive Director

Ms. Rebecca PUN Ting-ting, JP
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Operational Review

DYNAMIC • CREATIVE • EFFECTIVE
In 2009 -10, the Hong Kong labour market experienced volatility and turbulences. ERB has joined hands with different stakeholders to establish a more comprehensive scheme of manpower training and development with a wider coverage of industries which aims at upgrading the quality of the labour force and providing favourable conditions for Hong Kong’s sustainable development. ERB responds aptly to market demand through dynamic, creative and effective ways by adjusting course contents and services flexibly to tie in with the development of the economy and the employment market.
“Dynamic, Creative, Effective” • Embracing New Challenges

In 2009 -10, the Hong Kong labour market experienced volatility and turbulences. The beginning of the year saw Hong Kong’s economy hard hit by the global financial turmoil, and market confidence was shaken. The economy managed to get back on track to a gradual recovery in the middle of the year. The seasonally adjusted unemployment rate once edged up to 5.4% (over 200,000 people unemployed), and gradually declined to 4.4% (some 160,000 people unemployed) by year end.

In the same year, the Employees Retraining Board (ERB) embarked on a new direction, as it implemented in phases the final recommendations of the strategic review on the future directions of ERB, which envisaged establishing a more comprehensive scheme of manpower training and development with a wider coverage of industries.

ERB aims to upgrade the quality of the labour force and provide favourable conditions for Hong Kong’s sustainable development. ERB has joined hands with different stakeholders to build a territory-wide, flexible and resilient training network to respond aptly to market demand. Among other things, ERB has strengthened cooperation with training bodies to offer new courses and services; enhanced ties with various industries and professional bodies to ensure our courses respond to market needs; fostered strategic partnership with employers to develop rapport; and ensured full compliance with government policies and development plans. Course contents, support services and training capacity are flexibly adjusted to tie in with the development of the economy and the employment market.

Motivation Provided by the Final Report
Since its establishment in 1992, ERB has been providing its service targets, the unemployed aged 30 or above with education level of Secondary three or below with job-specific skills training courses and placement follow-up services
to enable them to rejoin the labour market. In October 2007, the Chief Executive-in-Council resolved to expand the scope of the ERB service targets with effect from 1 December 2007 to cover eligible employees in Hong Kong aged 15 or above with education level of sub-degree or below.

In response to the expansion of service targets, ERB committed itself to establishing a more comprehensive manpower training and development system for Hong Kong. In January 2008, ERB released a public consultation document on its new directions to solicit views from the public, and the final report was approved by the Chief Executive-in-Council on 31 March 2009. The repositioned ERB launched
the
“Manpower
Development Scheme” to provide job-specific skills training courses for the unemployed and non-engaged, as well as skills upgrading courses and generic skills training courses for serving employees to improve the quality of the labour force, and assist trainees to obtain recognized professional qualifications for sustainable employment and development.

In 2009 -10, the local economy and employment market struggled to cope with the global financial turmoil. ERB took prompt action to actively and flexibly deploy its resources to assume greater responsibility in nurturing our workers, alleviating unemployment and skill-mismatch problems, and enhancing the quality and productivity of the labour force. With the mission to provide people-oriented service, ERB is moving ahead along the following directions:

(1)
Strengthen research, expand networks, fortify recognition, promote employment;

(2)
Provide optimal training, enhance quality, offer innovative services, help people help themselves;

(3)
Invest in people, construct learning pathways, support enterprises, create win-win situations; and

(4)
Promote self-actualization, develop individual potential, be caring and understanding, instil social harmony.

In the aftermath of the financial turmoil, ERB is committed to promoting the “Manpower Development Scheme” to provide a flexible, quality and resilient labour force for the knowledge-based economy of Hong Kong.

Prudent Use of Resources • Long-term Commitment to Training

The service targets of the repositioned ERB have been expanded from the unemployed aged 30 or above with an education level of Secondary three or below to those aged 15 or above with education level of sub-degree or below. The clientele of ERB now exceeds 2.6 million, including some 140,000 unemployed persons. In view of the substantial increase in the number of service targets, ERB needs to suitably allocate resources to achieve optimum effectiveness.

To make the best use of resources and enable more people to receive training, ERB implemented the recommendations pertaining to payment of retraining allowance of the strategic review approved by the Government. Full-time placement-tied training courses for the unemployed / non-engaged are offered free of charge and eligible trainees are entitled to the payment of retraining allowance. While the rate of retraining allowance for the original service targets (i.e. people aged 30 or above with education level of Secondary three or below) attending a certificate course remains unchanged, new rates have been introduced for trainees attending a diploma course or the “Youth Training Programme” (YTP), or those who belong to the new target group.

Post-financial Tsunami • Helping People Overcome Difficult Moments

In February 2009, we launched a series of “3Q Workshops” at the two ERB Resource Centres to ease the negative emotions among the participants as a result of the global financial turmoil and to boost their morale when facing adversity. Since the workshops were well received by the trainees, ERB held another three sessions of “3Q Seminar Series” in July 2009. Experts and celebrities were invited to share their wisdom on staying positive in time of difficulties. Information counters were set up to provide information on ERB training courses and services. Close to 1,500 people attended the seminars. Through the organization of different promotional and educational activities, ERB hopes to inculcate positive thinking and energy in the community and instill an empathetic, harmonious and forward-looking culture.

Under the
 impact of the financial turmoil, it is important to engage the service targets on ERB courses to upgrade their job-specific skills and enable them to overcome adversity. In this vein, ERB organized a brand new two-day “ERB Course Enrolment Day” in late September 2009. With the concerted effort of over 40 training bodies, the event provided detailed and up-to-date information on ERB training courses, one-stop and on-site service application, admission interviews and enrolment. Some 3,500 people attended the “ERB Course Enrolment Day”.

The “ERB Course Enrolment Day” encompassed 10 seminars and sharing sessions to provide in-depth information on industries, job requirements and interview tips. They were well received by the general public. The event also featured an aptitude test zone where participants could gain a better understanding of their personal aspirations for career planning through taking aptitude tests. Social workers were stationed on the spot to offer personalized training advice and career counselling.
Diverse but Focused
Offering over 120,000 Training Places to Meet Demand

ERB provides training with diversity and career prospects for various target groups. During the year, ERB
 worked in collaboration with 76 training bodies to promote the “Manpower Development Scheme”.
Over
 120,000 training places were offered in response to the training needs and career aspirations of the wide-ranging clientele.

ERB actively develops new training courses for its new service targets (i.e. those aged under 30, and those aged 30 or above with an education level of Secondary four to sub-degree). During the year, course enrolment reached 103,100, of which some 57,100 (55%) belonged to the new service targets.

During the year, over 94,000 trainees completed ERB’s training courses, of which more than 55,000 trainees (59%) attended placement-tied courses. ERB has adopted a number of key performance indicators to monitor the effectiveness of its training courses. In the year, the utilization of training capacity was 92%, completion rate of training courses was 91% and job placement rate was 80%. These figures indicated that the training courses adequately catered for the needs of the unemployed and the labour market.

Developing New Courses in Response to Market Needs

ERB upholds the “market-driven, employment-oriented” principle in the development of training courses. It actively collates market information to ensure timely response to market needs and related changes.

In the light of the expansion in service targets, ERB has launched over 300 new courses in the past two years, of which about 100 courses were proposed by training bodies. ERB now provides a diversified training recipe comprising around 500 courses straddling almost 30 industries. ERB also regularly reviews the implementation progress and market positioning of its courses, strengthens and improves courses in high demand,
and develops new courses with market potential. In the development of new courses, ERB consults the “Industry Consultative Networks” (ICNs) and makes reference to the Specification of Competency Standards stipulated by Industry Training Advisory Committees under the Qualifications Framework (QF) in order to ensure that the training contents are in line with the requirements of the industries.

ERB encourages training bodies to develop new courses with reference to their employer networks and market intelligence. During the year, the Course Development Subsidy and Training Facilities Subsidy was extended to cover all full-time placement-tied courses developed by training bodies. The move aims at providing incentives to training bodies to develop new courses to cater for the training needs of different service targets.

Launching the Skills Upgrading Scheme Plus with Vision

ERB’s new service targets cover over 2.4 million serving employees in various industries and occupations with different training needs. In July 2009, ERB launched the “Skills Upgrading Scheme Plus” (SUS Plus), offering job-specific training courses at QF Levels 1 to 4 on half-day or evening basis. SUS Plus aims at enhancing the skills level of employees, helping them develop multiple skills, and encouraging them to continuous upgrade through training. It also provides training for those who plan to make a change in career. Courses of different industries are launched in phases. Eligible trainees are entitled to fee waivers or subsidies.

During the year, ERB launched 42 SUS Plus courses according to market and social needs straddling 12 industries including Business, Information & Communications Technology, Healthcare Services, Chinese Healthcare, Beauty Therapy, Property Management & Security, Environmental Services, Electrical & Mechanical Services, Retail, Design, Social Services, and Domestic Services. The courses aim at upgrading trainees’ skills to cope with their job requirements, while some of them also prepare trainees for examinations and professional certification. Better qualifications are a key to upward mobility along the career ladder.

In December 2009, ERB took over from the “Skills Upgrading Scheme” of the Labour and Welfare Bureau the organization of 44 training courses with market demand under the Medical and Health and Insurance categories.

To foster the development of SUS
Plus,
 ERB welcomes organizations experienced in training to become its “Appointed Training Bodies of Specific Service Areas” to provide skills upgrading courses in specified industries for employees and people seeking a career change. During the year, 17 organizations were enlisted as training bodies of ERB under this category.

Youth Training Programme • Enhanced Support for Non-engaged Youths

Non-engaged youths aged 15 to 20 with an education level below Secondary five generally lack work skills and experience, nor are they properly equipped with the concepts of work culture. In September 2008, ERB piloted the YTP in collaboration with the Vocational Training Council, offering three training programmes on “Teens’ Programme”, “Modern Apprenticeship Scheme” and “Ethnic Minority Project”. YTP provides graduates with placement follow-up service of six to nine months, rendering employment support to trainees or referring them for further studies on a full-time basis.

In August 2009, ERB invited other training bodies with strong background in youth services to offer new programmes under YTP. Nine training programmes were developed under YTP to reach out to and benefit young people with special needs from a variety of backgrounds. These new programmes were designed with reference to the training bodies’ network and aimed at motivating young people of particular characteristics e.g. young people from single-parent or low-income families, mentally rehabilitated youths, ex-drug abusers and youths of ethnic minority origin to receive training. These nine programmes were “Engine On with EM Youth”, “Y-FRESH”, “Brew Your Future”, “Strive for V”, “Future Foundation”, “Teens Innovation”, “Beacon of Life”, “Shiny Teen Project” and “Lime Force Scheme”. Altogether 12 programmes under YTP were organized in 2009-10 offering 73 full-time placement-tied courses in different areas.

Generic Skills Training • Laying the Foundation for Employment

ERB provides generic skills training courses, covering areas such as workplace languages, business numeracy and IT applications, to assist trainees in laying a good foundation in employment and provide them with clear learning pathways under the QF. Courses are offered on part-time or evening basis. Trainees can acquire recognized qualifications on completion of each training module. They may study different courses by phases according to their ability and needs.

Currently, courses of workplace English and IT applications are of QF Levels 1 to 4, whereas Putonghua courses are of Levels 1 to 3. Trainees can thus articulate pathways for ERB courses in their pursuit of continuous learning. During the year, ERB offered a series of preparatory courses for internationally recognized language proficiency tests e.g. Test of Proficiency in Putonghua conducted by the State Commission on Language Work, BULATS and IELTS which were pitched at QF Levels 3 to 4.

Specialized Services • Tailor-made for Specific Target Clientele

While ERB expands its service targets, it places special attention to the needs of disadvantaged groups, including ethnic minorities, new arrivals, people with disabilities, people recovered from industrial accidents and rehabilitated ex-offenders. Through the provision of training and placement services, ERB strives to assist the disadvantaged groups to integrate into society and achieve self-reliance.

Since 2007, ERB has been developing specialized training courses conducted in English to suit the career aspirations and training needs of the ethnic minorities. In 2009 -10, ERB provided 17 full-time placement-tied courses covering nine industries and 14 generic skills training courses, including two elementary Cantonese courses designed specifically for ethnic minorities on part-time basis. ERB also launched the “Employment Set Sail” programme conducted in English to enhance the knowledge of the ethnic minorities on the local labour market, workplace culture, community resources, job seeking channels and interview techniques.

With reference to the special needs of the ethnic minorities, ERB makes flexible arrangements in respect of the minimum class size for these specialized courses. As necessary, ERB provides resources to training bodies for the employment of teaching assistants who can speak English and ethnic minority languages to provide interpretation and other support services in the course of training.

During the year, ERB launched a study of the training needs of ethnic minorities to provide input for the formulation of an improved training strategy. The study commenced in February 2010, and is expected to be completed by the end of 2010.

To help new arrivals integrate into the community and adapt to the local working environment, ERB has introduced, on top of the “Employment Set Sail” programme, four new courses on English, Cantonese and IT applications to impart foundation skills to the new arrivals. Subject to the entry requirements of different courses, new arrivals may also enrol in other suitable training courses to obtain recognized qualifications.

In 2009 -10, ERB launched 41 courses to help the disabled and people recovered from industrial accidents seek employment. Job-specific skills training courses cover eight industries, namely, Printing & Publishing, Logistics, Social Services, Domestic Services, Business, Information & Communications Technology, Retail, and Environmental Services. More popular courses include those related to cleaning, retail and clerical work. Generic skills training courses in workplace languages and IT applications are also organized. Such courses mainly targeted people suffering from chronic diseases or with acquired disabilities such as mental illness and physical handicaps. Placement-tied courses generally involve longer training hours, providing not only job-specific skills training but also work adaptation, psychological adjustments and counseling on placement. Class size is generally smaller to cater for the training needs of individual trainees. Graduates of placement-tied courses receive a six-month placement follow-up service to help them seek suitable and sustainable employment.

ERB has been working closely with the Correctional Services Department and training bodies to offer job-specific skills training courses for inmates at correctional services institutions. To help inmates with different vocational aspirations, ERB offered eight placement-tied training courses and three generic skills training courses in 2009 -10. They covered various industries including Logistics, Tourism, Retail, Hotel and Environmental Services. The training bodies provide a six-month personalized job matching and placement follow-up services to facilitate the rehabilitated ex-offenders re-integrate into the employment market.

In the light of the development of the local fishing industry, and taking into consideration that some fishermen gave up fishing in pursuit of alternative employment, ERB joined hands with the Agriculture, Fisheries and Conservation Department to provide training for the fishermen who would like to have a change. During the South China Sea fishing moratorium in 2010, training courses were offered to help them acquire knowledge and recognized qualifications of other industries, and prepare them for new employment opportunities.

Professional Advancement
Professional Certification • Moving up the Career Ladder

In 2009 -10, ERB strengthened the development of professional certification courses to help trainees move up the career ladder. Among the new training courses, some 30 lead to professional certification and cover over 13 industries / course categories. Some courses are designed specifically for the unemployed and non-engaged, and offer free of any charge training, assessment, certification and placement follow-up services. Trainees on completion of most full-time placement-tied professional certification courses are offered a six-month placement follow-up service to help them seek employment after they obtain the professional qualification.

“Through-train” Service for National Occupational Qualification

In May 2007, ERB signed a cooperation agreement with the Guangdong Occupational Skill Testing Authority to launch a pilot scheme to introduce the National Occupational Skills Assessment in Hong Kong. Since then, 10 National Occupational Skills Assessments have been conducted in healthcare massage. 163 trainees have obtained Level 5 National Occupational Qualification Certificate while 13 trainees have obtained the Level 4 Certificate. To enable more trainees to participate in the National Occupational Skills Assessment in healthcare massage and enhance their employment opportunities both in Hong Kong and Mainland China, ERB has developed Level 4 and Level 5 Module Certificate Courses in Healthcare Massage (National Occupational Qualification). The courses aim at improving trainees’ knowledge and skills in healthcare massage as well as their understanding of the requirements of assessments, so as to better prepare them for the assessments.

In the year, ERB has extended the National Occupational Skills Assessment to Beautician (Levels 4 and 5) Training, Chef of Chinese Cuisines (Levels 4 and 5) Training and Dim Sum and Chinese Pastry (Levels 4 and 5) Training. Trainees receive a “through-train” service covering free training, assessment and certification, as well as placement follow-up services. During the year, over 330 trainees enrolled in the courses with an encouraging overall pass rate of 90%. In January 2010, the Guangdong Occupational Skill Testing Authority authorized ERB to extend National Occupational Skills Assessment to Chef of Chinese Roasted Meat (Levels 4 and 5) Training, Western Cuisine Chef (Levels 4 and 5) Training and Salesman (Levels 4 and 5) Training in Hong Kong.

Enhance Quality Assurance • Ensure Training Outcome

The Executive Office of ERB was restructured to strengthen its management of training bodies. The newly set up Quality Assurance Division is responsible for training body management, quality assurance, management audit, course accreditation, skills assessment and the implementation of National Occupational Skills Assessment in Hong Kong.

ERB conducts on-site management audits, surprise inspections and class visits to monitor the performance of the appointed training bodies. During the year, the Executive Office completed on-site management audits of 63 training bodies which had organized training courses, 13 Smart Living Centres and two Training Resource Centres. Up to 520 surprise inspections were carried out on a random basis. ERB also formally launched the class visit scheme, under which teaching advisors conducted some 350 visits to different training centres. Overall speaking, the performance of training bodies and instructors could meet the standards set by ERB.

Courses Recognized by the Qualifications Framework through Accreditation

To ensure recognition of the qualifications of its graduate trainees, ERB submits its courses to the Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic and Vocational Qualifications for accreditation. This also serves a useful purpose of quality assurance for the training courses. With the official launch of the Qualifications Register in May 2008, 320 courses of ERB have already been accredited by the Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic and Vocational Qualifications for recognition under the QF. During the year, ERB also organized quality assurance sharing sessions where training bodies with outstanding performance in quality assurance work were invited to share experience and discuss best practices. Training bodies were encouraged to learn from the experiences of their counterparts and continuously improve their internal quality assurance systems.

Skills Assessment to Ensure the Standards of Trainees

Assessment is an important tool to ensure the quality of ERB training courses. ERB Practical Skills Training and Assessment Centre is charged with coordinating and conducting our standardized skills assessments to ascertain if our trainees can achieve the intended learning outcomes of the courses. The Centre now conducts skills assessments of 11 placement-tied courses respectively on domestic helpers, hotel
room attendants, hotel public area cleaners, laundry workers, personal care workers, elderly home workers, post-natal care workers, infant and childcare workers, healthcare masseurs, environmental hygiene and cleaning workers, and banquet and catering attendants. With the implementation of SUS Plus, the Centre extended skills assessment in 2009 -10 to five module certificate courses respectively on elderly nursing care, elderly care, post-natal care, infant care and child care. During the year, the Centre assessed some 16,600 trainees and the overall pass rate was over 80%.

In 2009 -10, the Centre uploaded photos and videos of the assessment venues and facilities onto the ERB website to further enhance the transparency of skills assessment. It also held quarterly Open Days for instructors and training bodies to help them familiarize with the assessment venues, facilities and operational procedures. The assessors exchanged views with them on assessment requirements to enable them to better prepare trainees for the assessments.

Some skills assessments are undertaken by assessors appointed by the training bodies. To continuously improve the quality and consistency in skills assessment, the Centre launched a pilot scheme on standardized skills assessment of four courses in October 2009. Under the scheme, Technical Advisors with substantial industry experience and professional qualifications were arranged to observe skills assessments on-site on a random basis. After observation, they exchanged views with the assessors and staff of the training bodies regarding the conduct and standards of skills assessments and made recommendations for improvement. This pilot scheme will last for one year and will be reviewed before it ends.

Transformation and Innovation
Expanded Network • Improved Course Content and Service

In July 2009, ERB began to set up ICNs of different industries to strengthen the partnership and communication with the industries. Representatives of trade associations, labour unions and professional bodies with insight into and commitment to the manpower development of the industry are invited to join ICNs. ICNs take a macro approach to examine and discuss the training needs of individual industries and offer advice on course development covering both SUS Plus courses and full-time placement-tied courses for the unemployed and non-engaged. They also highlight the training needs and market demand of different occupations of individual industries and help promote ERB courses within the industries.

There is no limit on the number of ICN members, and ERB invites professionals to join the relevant ICNs in accordance with the need for course and service development. The Executive Office plans to launch around 30 ICNs before the end of 2011. In 2009-10, nine ICNs were established, covering Information and Communications Technology, Property Management and Security, Electrical and Mechanical Services, Insurance, Healthcare Services, Chinese Healthcare, Beauty Therapy, Domestic Services, and Retail, with a total of 173 ICN members.

In 2008-09, ERB pioneered the appointment of experienced practitioners from various industries as Technical
Advisors to provide professional advice on course development and management. The duties of the Advisors are to inspect training facilities, scrutinize curricula, review teaching materials and examination papers, and observe and comment on practical skills assessments. In 2009-10, 40 technical advisors in 18 industry categories were appointed.

Manpower Developer • Cultivating a New Corporate Culture

With a view to instilling the importance of manpower training and development into corporate culture of enterprises and heightening the awareness of employers and employees of the benefits of on-the-job training and continuous upgrading, ERB launched in December 2009 the “ERB Manpower Developer Award Scheme”. This is the first award scheme which involves assessment of the manpower training and development strategies and practices of organizations in Hong Kong. It acknowledges the outstanding commitment and achievements in manpower training and development of organizations from the public and private sectors, including the small and medium sized enterprises. Through the Award Scheme, ERB hopes to create a diversified, multi-faceted and sustainable interactive platform for the organizations to share experiences and discuss best practices. By fostering strategic partnership with the “Manpower Developers” (MDs), ERB hopes to motivate enterprises to reach a consensus on the need to enhance the quality of human resources in Hong Kong.

ERB appointed an independent technical consultant to formulate a set of objective and stringent assessment criteria to examine and evaluate the commitment and performance of organizations in manpower training and development in terms of: (1) Leading a Learning Culture; (2) Planning of Resources; (3) Training and Development System; (4) Performance Management; and (5) Corporate Social Responsibility in Manpower Development. Organizations that fulfil the criteria will be accorded the status of MD with a two-year validity period, subject to renewal upon review.

11 experts from the academic and continuing education sectors and prominent figures in professional associations have been appointed as Honorary Advisors to review the assessment mechanism and overall operation. ERB also solicits support from eight trade associations and professional bodies to disseminate, in their capacity as Supporting Organizations, the latest information on ERB and the Award Scheme through their membership networks.

Altogether 70 organizations and 10 SMEs were awarded “Manpower Developer 1st” (MD 1st) at the presentation ceremony held on 23 April 2010 in recognition of their outstanding achievements in training and development and their pioneer participation in the Award Scheme.

Support Industry • Enhance Job Matching for Graduate Trainees

During the year, ERB launched the “Industry Promotion Programme”
to sponsor its appointed training bodies to organize district-based industry promotion activities for the dissemination of information on course-related job opportunities and prospects, career ladder, recognized qualifications, as well as promotion of ERB courses. These activities help our graduate trainees find suitable jobs, while at the same time strengthen our networks
with
employers and
promote the “Manpower Development Scheme”.

A total of 49 activities were organized under the “Industry Promotion Programme” in the form of exhibitions, seminars and job fairs, with the participation of 122 organizations from various industries and attendance by more than 3,800 visitors, from whom over 3,600 job applications were received. 513 people enrolled in ERB courses on-site to upgrade their skills and pave the way to better career prospects.

Reformed Service • Aligning Overall Development Needs

During the year, ERB repositioned the “Tailor-made Programme” to highlight its unique features which distinguished it from the full-time placement-tied courses. The new model of “Tailor-made Programme” mainly covers job positions which experience a shortage of supply in the labour market and require specialized skills and training which may not be readily available in ERB’s full-time placement-tied courses so as to optimize the edges and values of “tailor-making”. ERB will package the “Tailor-made Programme” and the “Industry Promotion Programme” as value-added services to help employers solve recruitment problems. At the same time, ERB may be able to secure job opportunities for its graduate trainees.

ERB expanded the coverage of the “Work Experience Pilot Programme” from healthcare masseur to personal care worker, security and
property attendant, clubhouse and recreation assistant, after-school care tutor, infant and childcare worker, post-natal care worker, and social service assistant. The Programme provides extended training for graduate trainees to acquire course-related practical experience and enhance their employability. Over 300 graduate trainees undertook work experience arrangements during the year.

Strengthened Support • Enhancing Placement Services

To enhance the standard of placement services offered by our training bodies, ERB commissioned a consultancy study on “Enhanced Placement Service Model” in April 2009 to review and assess the needs and expectations of trainees on the breadth and depth of placement follow-up services vis-à-vis the nature of placement services being offered by the training bodies. In the course of the study, the consultant collected views from major stakeholders including trainees, employers and training bodies.

Based on the recommendations of the study and feedback from training bodies, ERB decided in December 2009 to implement an “Enhanced Placement Service Model” by phases starting from 2010 -11.
Under the new model, for training courses targeting “regular employment”, the follow-up service for trainees placed into jobs will be extended to include the retention period. The duration of placement follow-up period for trainees after completion of training is lengthened from three to six months, with a view to supporting trainees to find a job and sustain in employment. ERB will introduce new performance indicators on “retention rate” and quality of placement services in due course.

Pioneer Project • Gaining Practical Experience at Training-cum-Employment Resource Centre

The Chief Executive announced in his Policy Address in October 2007 the introduction of a pilot scheme to try out the one-stop employment support mode. ERB reacted positively with the setting up of a one-stop “Training-cum-Employment Resource Centre” (TERC) in Shun Ning Road, Sham Shui Po. TERC has been in full operation since October 2008. The pilot scheme lasts for two years until the end of September 2010. In terms of positioning, TERC is the only centre in Hong Kong where the two core services of training and employment are effectively integrated. On one hand, it serves as a window for ERB to showcase our services to our target clientele. On the other hand, it offers a three-tier mode of training and employment services that caters for the needs of different service targets in the West Kowloon area.

As at March 2010, membership of TERC and the “East Kowloon Training Resource Centre” already exceeded 5,300 and 3,000, while over 420,000 and 210,000 persons made use of the facilities and services of the two centres respectively. At TERC, over 480 people had received personalized case management service offered by our professional social workers.

We have commenced a review of the operation of TERC. In the light of the policy direction of the Government in setting up a one-stop shop for the provision of employment and training / retraining services, ERB will consider how best to reposition TERC upon completion of the pilot scheme. Among other things, the role of the centre as a window for ERB courses and services will be strengthened.

Expanded Platform • Smart Living Scheme Grows on Solid Foundation

The “Smart Living” Scheme was introduced in March 2009 to replace the “Integrated Scheme for Local Domestic Helpers”. It offers a one-stop referral platform for services of Home, Health and Care to employers who pursue quality of life. With an expanded referral platform covering diverse services including home cleaning, cooking, post-natal care, child care, elderly and patient care, support for attending medical appointments, care for plants / pets, stand-in service for foreign domestic helpers who are on leave, etc., the Scheme aims at expanding job opportunities for our graduate trainees. In 2009-10, over 50,000 job vacancies were canvassed under the Scheme.

Through the annual “Chinese New Year Cleaning Campaign” under the “Smart Living” Scheme offered in January 2010, over 5,300 vacancies were canvassed, of which 90% were filled by our graduate trainees. To enrich our service portfolio and better meet the employers’ needs, we pioneered the “Chinese New Year Eve Dinner Cooking Service”. The new service attracted considerable media interest and encouraging response from employers.

Striving for Improvement • Revamping HMIS

In 2009 -10, ERB completed a review of its “Healthcare Massage Integrated Scheme” (HMIS). To enhance the cost-effectiveness and ensure the sustainable development of the service, ERB decided to subsume the massage referral services in clubhouses of housing estates and commercial enterprises, and the home-based massage referral services under HMIS into the “Smart Living” platform with effect from 1 April 2010. The branding and promotional efforts of “Smart Living” can provide leverage in opening up new markets and business opportunities for healthcare massage. ERB organized a number of briefing and consultation sessions to introduce the revamped model to trainees, and provided them with suitable support services. On the other hand, the “3R Zone” massage shop was closed at the end of December 2009 upon expiry of the lease due to redevelopment of the New World Centre in Tsim Sha Tsui.
Reinforcing the New ERB Brand
Innovation  •  Continuous Promotion of  New Image

ERB organized from September to November 2009 a series of large-scale promotional activities focusing on industries to promote SUS Plus and the formation of ICNs for fostering relationship with industry partners. They included the SUS Plus Photo Contest, the Public Polling Campaign inviting the public to cast votes for their favourite photos, and the Launching Ceremony of SUS Plus. ERB invited the famous actor Mr. Nick CHEUNG Ka-fai as Ambassador to promote SUS Plus.

A Launching Ceremony was held in November 2009 at the Hong Kong Cultural Centre Piazza, with a public exhibition to introduce ERB and the SUS Plus courses on offer. The exhibition also showcased the winning entries of the Photo Contest.

Public Recognition through Promotion of the ERB Manpower Development Scheme
As an important annual event of ERB, the “ERB Manpower Development Scheme Award Presentation Ceremony” is held to acknowledge the active participation of organizations of different sectors, and to pay tribute to trainees with outstanding achievements in self-improvement and continuous upgrading. The event also serves as a platform for ERB to fortify our partnership with stakeholders of the “Manpower Development Scheme” and to express our gratitude for their continuous support.

The 2nd Presentation Ceremony was held in January 2010, at which ERB presented the Outstanding Award for Trainees, the Outstanding Award for Employers, the Outstanding Award for Instructors, the Strategic Partners Award as well as awards for ERB’s appointed training bodies including the Course Development Award, the Course Management Award, the Placement Service Award, the Quality Service Award and the Promotion Award. These awards commended our stakeholders for their outstanding performance and contributions towards the “Manpower Development Scheme”.

Positive Life  •  Promotion of Training Courses and Positive  Thinking
During the year, ERB continued its policy of funding appointed training bodies to strengthen publicity and promotion at the district
level
for
the
“Manpower
Development
Scheme”.
A common theme of “Manpower Development, Skills Upgrading” was adopted to integrate promotion effects on various fronts organized throughout the year to maximize their impact. In 2009 -10, 25 training bodies organized 46 activities in the form of exhibitions on ERB courses and services, road-shows, skills demonstrations, recruitment-cum-course enrolment days, and discussion forums.

To enhance public understanding of the new training courses and services introduced by the repositioned ERB, we joined hands with TVB to produce a one-minute TV programme series entitled “I love the new ERB” which was broadcasted on TVB Jade and HD Jade on five consecutive evenings in early October 2009. The TV series provided the latest information on ERB courses and services in a lively manner. In addition, ERB sponsored seven episodes of “Earn a Living with a Professional Qualification” in an i-Cable TV programme from December 2009 to January 2010. The focus of the programme was ERB courses leading to professional qualifications.

In July 2009, ERB published the first issue of the newsletter “活亮人生” to promote positive thinking and mindset, and encourage people to lead a bright and passionate life. The newsletter adopts a soft magazine approach and features cover stories, industry / training updates, celebrity columns and tips on healthy living. It hopes to provide readers with inspiration from different perspectives on the wisdom of life and positive energy in face of adversity.

Opening up Channels  •  Bringing the  Message Home

ERB applies various channels to promote its courses and services to its service targets. ERB places outdoor billboards at premium locations with high traffic; launches a series of interactive advertisements at websites; and employs discussion forums,
blogs and keyword search to help disseminate information of ERB courses and services to a wider cross-section of the community.

To promote the training opportunities available to ethnic minorities, ERB publishes promotional materials in English, Urdu, Tamil, Nepalese, Indian and Indonesian languages for distribution to ethnic minority communities via various channels. ERB also places advertisements in newspapers and websites popular among the ethnic minorities to attract them to enrol in ERB courses. In addition, ERB provides funding to the appointed training bodies and teams up with government departments to organize community promotion activities.
Improving Governance
Reinforcing Control and Monitoring  •  Improving Performance 

In 2009-10, a number of administrative measures were rolled out to speed up the course application process and curtail waiting time. Since 1 July 2009, class schedules of some part-time foundation skills courses (covering 21 generic skills training courses and three “Employment Set Sail” courses) were uploaded to the ERB website, for the reference of trainees prior to enrolment. With effect from 2010 -11, all appointed training bodies are required to upload their class schedules to the ERB website and display copies of the schedules at training centres. The training bodies are to maintain close communication with applicants and update them on the progress of class commencement while they are waiting to be enrolled.

In order to strengthen the management of training bodies, ERB has entered into new service agreements with them. The agreements took effect from 1 April 2010. To provide smooth and effective service to our clients, ERB has compiled comprehensive operational guidelines for the appointed training bodies, which include circulars, guidance notes and service handbooks on course development, administration, quality assurance, financial administration, information technology and promotion. The guidelines were issued in January 2010 and their contents are to be updated on an annual basis. Moreover, ERB has been actively considering the promulgation of performance pledges for its different services.

With a view to providing quality customer service, ERB set up in October 2009 a Customer Services Section to handle the “182 182” enquiry hotline, operate the reception counter and receive complaints from members of the public.

Providing Staff Training to Enhance Service Quality 

To enhance awareness of ethnic minority cultures and sensitivity towards such cultures in the provision of services, ERB invited Hong Kong Unison to organize two workshops on the subject for ERB employees and
front-line
staff
of training bodies respectively.

ERB also organized four tailor-made training sessions on the Race Discrimination Ordinance for staff of training bodies and ERB. They were conducted by officers of the Equal Opportunities Commission. Through these sessions, training bodies were able to gain a better understanding of the Ordinance and the requirements on their part as well as the precautions to be observed in their day-to-day work.

To ensure continuous enhancement of instructors’ teaching quality and equip them with effective teaching skills, ERB encourages instructors to share their experiences with their counterparts in other training bodies. During the year, ERB organized three experience-sharing sessions for instructors of different course types, and arranged for five occupational safety and health training sessions and six teaching skills workshops.

In line with ERB’s future direction and to meet public expectations on our service, ERB attaches much importance to the training and development of our employees. A staff training and development plan for the coming year has been drawn up. It includes job related training, courses for improvement of personal analytical skills, and problem-solving and supervisory skills. The objectives of the plan are promotion of life-long learning, enhancement of job performance and facilitation of career development.

Strengthening Communication  •  Exchanges  with Various Sectors

ERB emphasizes the importance of communication with its partners and regularly organizes Agency Head Meetings with the management of training bodies for in-depth discussion on new initiatives and changes in policies and procedures. They enhance mutual understanding and ensure that training bodies work in resonance with ERB to achieve optimum efficiency and effectiveness.

The Executive Office of ERB maintains close communication with front-line staff of training bodies on day-to-day work. Regular forums are held to exchange views on course administration, service portfolio and new measures to ensure that training courses offered by ERB meet the needs of trainees in terms of placement service, quality assurance and administrative arrangements.

ERB also strives to strengthen connections and cooperation with other organizations or professional bodies to share experience and exchange views on improvement of services. In 2009 -10, ERB received the delegates of a Zhongshan municipal study group interested in the subject of training of domestic helpers and “Smart Living” referral services; met the Director of Labour Affairs Bureau of Macau SAR and other senior government officials to discuss manpower training and development in Hong Kong and Macau; received the delegates of a Guangdong provincial research unit on Employment Promotion Law to share experience in training and placement services and the establishment of TERC; and met the Guangzhou Municipal Labour and Social Security Bureau to explore possible ways to facilitate employment through vocational training. ERB also organized discussion sessions with Legislative Councillors concerned with minority rights to exchange views on our training and support services to the ethnic minorities. We also arranged for the representatives of the Hong Kong Employers of Domestic Helpers’ Association to visit our training centres so as to allow them to gain a better understanding of our training for domestic helpers and our “Smart Living” free referral platform.
Financial Statements

REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2010
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF EMPLOYEES RETRAINING BOARD

(Established in Hong Kong under the Employees Retraining Ordinance)

We have audited the financial statements of Employees Retraining Board (the “ERB”) set out on pages 30 to 49, which comprise the balance sheet as at 31st March 2010, and the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in funds and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Responsibilities of the Board for the financial statements

The Board is responsible for the preparation and the true and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. This responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 11(2) of the Employees Retraining Ordinance and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Board, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the ERB’s affairs as at 31st March 2010 and of its deficit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong

19th November 2010
Balance Sheet












  

As at March 31
	
	
	
	二零一零年
	二零零九年

	
	
	附註
	2010
	2009

	
	
	Note
	港幣HK$
	港幣HK$

	資產
	Assets
	
	
	

	非流動資產
	Non-current assets 
	
	
	

	物業、機器及設備 
	Property, plant and equipment                  
	5
	12,410,115
	19,379,379

	租賃及公用設施按金 
	Non-current rental and utility deposits
	7
	4,189,035
	3,506,610

	
	
	
	16,599,150
	22,885,989

	流動資產 
	Current assets
	
	
	

	按金、預付款及其他應收款 
	Deposits, prepayments and other receivables
	7
	27,276,026
	35,456,985

	應收入境事務處之款項
	Amounts due from the Immigration Department
	8
	698,800
	11,468,000

	應收培訓機構之款項
	Amounts due from training bodies
	8
	267,176
	2,148,822

	原到期日超過三個月之短期銀行存款
	Short-term bank deposits with original maturities over three months
	9
	4,026,527,000
	4,538,747,000

	現金及現金等價物
	Cash and cash equivalents
	10
	240,433,036
	247,186,355

	
	
	
	4,295,202,038
	4,835,007,162

	總資產
	Total Assets
	　
	4,311,801,188
	4,857,893,151

	資金
	Funds
	
	
	

	僱員再培訓基金
	Employees Retraining Fund
	11
	1,600,000,000
	1,600,000,000

	累積盈餘
	Accumulated fund surplus
	
	2,655,519,252
	3,183,372,231

	總資金
	Total funds
	　
	4,255,519,252
	4,783,372,231

	負債 
	Liabilities
	
	
	

	流動負債
	Current liabilities
	
	
	

	應付培訓機構之款項 
	Amounts due to training bodies             
	8
	1,393,604
	2,173,088

	應付款項及其他應付款 
	Accruals and other payables
	12
	54,888,332
	72,347,832

	總負債
	Total liabilities
	　
	56,281,936
	74,520,920

	總資金及負債
	Total funds and liabilities
	　
	4,311,801,188
	4,857,893,151


The notes on pages 33 to 49 are an integral part of these financial statements.

Statement of Comprehensive Income
Year ended 31st March
	
	
	
	二零一零年
	二零零九年

	
	
	附註
	2010
	2009

	
	
	Note
	港幣HK$
	港幣HK$

	收入 
	Income
	
	
	

	徵款收入
	Levy income 
	
	213,076,215 
	771,802,400 

	利息收入
	Interest income
	13
	39,680,917 
	114,147,010 

	課程學費收入
	Course fee income 
	
	3,197,165 
	1,666,183 

	其他收入
	Other income
	
	127,492 
	128,591 

	
	
	
	256,081,789 
	887,744,184 

	支出
	Expenditure
	
	
	

	再培訓津貼
	Retraining allowances
	14
	90,279,005 
	83,514,655 

	培訓計劃及課程開支
	Training programmes and course expenses
	15
	596,567,543 
	388,868,199 

	向入境事務處就收取徵費 而繳交的行政開支
	Administrative fees charged by the Immigration Department for the collection of levy
	
	9,347,732 
	22,232,160 

	行政開支 
	Administrative expenses 
	16
	87,256,409 
	76,310,146 

	其他開支
	Other expenses
	17
	484,079 
	532,515 

	　
	　
	　
	783,934,768 
	571,457,675 

	年度(虧損) / 盈餘 
	(Deficit)/Surplus for the year 
	
	(527,852,979)
	316,286,509 

	年度其他綜合收益
	Other comprehensive income for the year
	　
	-
	-

	年度總綜合收益
	Total comprehensive income for the year
	　
	(527,852,979)
	316,286,509 


The notes on pages 33 to 49 are an integral part of these financial statements.
Statement of Changes in Fund
	
	
	僱員再培訓基金
	累積基金盈餘
	總計

	
	
	Employees Retraining Fund
	Accumulated fund  surplus
	Total

	
	
	港幣HK$
	港幣HK$
	港幣HK$

	於2008年4月1日
	At 1st April 2008
	1,600,000,000 
	2,867,085,722 
	4,467,085,772 

	綜合收益
	Comprehensive income
	
	
	

	年度盈餘
	Surplus for the year
	-
	316,286,509 
	316,286,509 

	其他綜合收益
	Other comprehensive income
	-
	           -
	              -

	總綜合收益
	Total comprehensive income
	-
	316,286,509 
	316,286,509 

	於2009年3月31日及2009年4月1日
	At 31st March 2009 and 1st April 2009
	1,600,000,000 
	3,183,372,231 
	4,783,372,231 

	綜合收益
	Comprehensive income
	
	
	


	年度虧損
	Deficit for the year
	-
	(527,852,979)
	(527,852,979)

	其他綜合收益
	Other comprehensive income
	-                      
	-
	-

	總綜合收益
	Total comprehensive income
	-
	(527,852,979)
	(527,852,979)

	於2010年3月31日
	At 31st March 2010
	1,600,000,000 
	2,655,519,252 
	4,255,519,252 


The notes on pages 33 to 49 are an integral part of these financial statements.
Statement of Cash Flows
Year ended 31st March
	
	
	
	二零一零年
	二零零九年

	
	
	附註
	2010
	2009

	
	
	Notes
	港幣HK$
	港幣HK$

	營運活動的現金流量
	Cash flows from operating activities
	
	
	

	營運活動(使用)/產生的淨現金
	Net cash (used in)/generated from operating activities
	20(a)
	(575,311,818)
	184,892,938 

	投資活動的現金流量
	Cash flows from investing activities
	
	
	

	利息收入
	Interest received
	
	57,089,351 
	123,883,054 

	購買物業、機器及設備
	Purchase of property, plant and equipment
	5 
	(750,852)
	(20,129,085)

	原到期日超過三個月的短期銀行存款的減少/(增加)
	Decrease/(Increase) in short-term bank deposits with original maturities over three months
	
	512,220,000 
	(213,447,000)

	投資活動產生/(使用)的淨現金
	Net cash generated from/(used in) investing activities
	
	568,558,499 
	(109,693,031)


	現金及現金等價物淨(減少)/增加
	Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents
	
	(6,753,319)
	75,199,907 

	年初現金及現金等價物
	Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year
	
	247,186,355 
	171,986,448 

	年終現金及現金等價物
	Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year
	10 
	240,433,036 
	247,186,355 


The notes on pages 33 to 49 are an integral part of these financial statements.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 General information
The Employees Retraining Board (the “ERB”) is a legal entity incorporated by the Government of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (the “Government”) under the Employees Retraining Ordinance (the “ERO”) of 1992 without a share capital. It is a non-profit-making organisation formed with the objective of providing training and retraining services for all Hong Kong eligible employees aged 15 or above and with education attainment of sub-degree or below. It is funded by levy payable by employers who employ imported employees.

In accordance with Section 14(1), Section 14(2) and Schedule 3 of the ERO, a specified levy known as the Employees Retraining Levy (the “levy”) is imposed on those employers importing employees under the Labour Importation Scheme and is payable in advance for the two-year contract period. The levy has been charged at a rate of HK$400 per month for each imported employee. From 1st October 2003 onwards, employers who employ, or renew a contract with, a foreign domestic helper, would also have to pay the levy. Effective from 1st August 2008, the obligation on employers of imported employees to pay the levy for new and renewed contracts has been suspended for a period of five years up to 31st July 2013. This has resulted in a decrease in levy income for the year ended 31st March 2010.

The address of the ERB is 43/F, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong 

The ERB has been granted an exemption under Section 88 of the Inland Revenue Ordinance (the “IRO”) and is therefore exempted from all taxes payable under the IRO.

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated. They have been approved for issue by the Board on 19th November 2010.  

2 Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the ERB have been prepared under the historical cost convention and in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the ERB’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements, are disclosed in note 4.

(a) Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that are effective on 1st January 2009

HKFRS 7 “Financial Instruments - Disclosures” (amendment) - The amendment requires enhanced disclosures about fair value measurement and liquidity risk. In particular, the amendment requires disclosure of fair value measurements by level of a fair value measurement hierarchy. Fair value measurement by level of hierarchy is not disclosed as the ERB has no financial instruments measured at fair value in the balance sheet

Hong Kong Accounting Standard 1 (revised) “Presentation of Financial Statements” - The revised standard prohibits the presentation of items of income and expenses (that is ‘non-owner changes in equity’) in the statement of changes in equity, requiring ‘non-owner changes in equity’ to be presented separately from owner changes in equity in a statement of comprehensive income. As a result, the ERB presents in the statement of changes in funds all owner changes in funds, whereas all non-owner changes in funds are presented in the statement of comprehensive income. Comparative information has been re-presented so that it also is in conformity with the revised standard. The change in presentation has no effect on reported surplus or deficit, total income and expenses or net asset for the period presented

(b) Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that are not yet effective

Certain new standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards (collectively, the “Amendments”) have been published that are mandatory for accounting periods commencing on or after 1st January 2010. Some of the Amendments are relevant and applicable to the ERB; however, they have not been early adopted in these financial statements. The ERB has commenced, but not yet completed, an assessment of the impact of the applicable Amendments on its results of operations and financial position. The Board is of the view that the impact on the financial statements would not be significant other than certain additional disclosures.

2.2 Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of the ERB are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the ERB operates (the “functional currency”). The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the ERB’s functional and presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

2.3 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is over HK$50,000 and is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. Expenditure of HK$50,000 or below is charged in the statement of comprehensive income during the financial year in which it is incurred.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the ERB and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of comprehensive income during the financial year in which they are incurred.

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the unexpired lease period or the estimated useful lives of 4 years, whichever is shorter. Depreciation on furniture and equipment is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their costs to their residual values over their estimated useful life of 4 years.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (note 2.4).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised within administrative expenses in the statement of comprehensive income.

2.4 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use.  For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

2.5 Receivables

If collection of receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as non- current assets.

Receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment.

2.6 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

2.7 Impairment of financial assets carried at amortised cost

The ERB assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

The criteria that the ERB uses to determine that there is objective evidence of an impairment loss include:

•
Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;

•
A breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal payments;

•
The ERB, for economic or legal reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, granting to  the borrower a concession that the lender would not otherwise consider;

•
It becomes probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

•
The disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties; or

•
Observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a portfolio of financial assets since the initial recognition of those assets, although the decrease cannot yet be identified with the individual financial assets in the portfolio, including:

(i)
adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers in the portfolio; or

(ii)
national or local economic conditions that correlate with defaults on the assets in the portfolio.

The ERB first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists.

The amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of the loss is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the previously recognised impairment loss is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income

2.8 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts, if any.

2.9 Payables

Payables are obligations to pay for services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers. Payables are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
2.10 Employee benefits

(a) Leave and gratuity entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and gratuities are recognised when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave and gratuities as a result of services rendered by employees up to the balance sheet date. Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

(b) Pension obligations

The ERB contributes to defined contribution plans. The assets of the plans are held in separate trustee-administered funds. The ERB has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are recognised as staff costs when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.

(c) Performance award (only applicable to non-directorate staff)

The ERB recognises a provision and an expense for performance award where contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that has created a constructive obligation.

2.11 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the ERB has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of  past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses. 

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

2.12
Revenue recognition

(a) Levy income

Levy income is recognised upon notification from the Immigration Department of its receipt from employers of imported labour.
(b) Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest method.

(c) Course fee

Course fee is recognised on a pro-rata basis over the duration of the course. 

(d) Other income

Other income is recognised on an accruals basis.

2.13
Operating leases (as the lessee)

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.
3 Financial and fund risk management

3.1 Financial risk factors

The ERB’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including foreign exchange risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and cash flow interest rate risk. The ERB’s overall risk management programme focuses on the availability of cash flows and the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the ERB’s financial performance and operating activities.

(a) Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk arises where future commercial transactions, recognised assets and liabilities are denominated in a currency that is not the ERB’s functional currency. As majority of the ERB’s transactions, recognised assets and liabilities are denominated in Hong Kong dollars, the Board is of the opinion that the ERB does not have significant foreign exchange risk. Accordingly, no sensitivity analysis is performed.

(b) Credit risk

The ERB’s credit risk is primarily attributable to the receivables from the Immigration Department and the deposits in reputable banks which have no history of default payment in the past. In the opinion of the Board, the credit risk in respect of these receivables is considered to be low.

(c) Liquidity risk

The liquidity of the ERB is managed and monitored by maintaining sufficient cash and bank balances and funding to meet its liabilities as and when they fall due and to continue its operations for the foreseeable future. Accordingly, the Board is of the opinion that the ERB does not have significant liquidity risk.
The table below analyses the ERB’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within a year equal their carrying values as the impact of discounting is not significant.
	
	
	 二零一零年
	  二零零九年

	
	
	2010
	2009

	
	
	港幣 HK$
	港幣 HK$

	少於一年
	Less than one year
	
	

	- 應付培訓機構款項
	- Amounts due to training bodies
	1,393,604
	2,173,088

	- 應計款項及其他應付款
	- Accruals and other payables
	44,845,290
	62,877,627

	
	
	46,238,894
	65,050,715


(d) Cash flow interest rate risk
The ERB’s interest-rate risk arises from the bank deposits which carry interest at market interest rates.

At 31st March 2010, had interest rates on interest-bearing bank deposits been 50 basis points higher / lower with all other variables held constant, deficit for the year (2009: surplus for the year) would have been approximately HK$21,313,000 lower / higher (2009: HK$23,900,000 higher / lower), as a result of higher / lower interest income on bank deposits.

3.2 Fund risk management

The ERB’s objectives when managing funds are to safeguard the ERB’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide training courses for local employees. The ERB’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior years. The funds of the ERB comprise Employees Retraining Fund and surplus in accumulated fund.

3.3 Fair value estimation

The carrying values less impairment provision of receivables and payables are assumed to approximate their fair values. The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate that is available to the ERB for similar financial instruments.

4 Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The ERB makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. However, there are no estimates or assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

5 Property, plant and equipment

	
	租賃樓宇改良工程
	      傢具及設備
	   合計

	
	 Leasehold improvements
	Furniture and equipment
	   Total

	
	港幣 HK$ 
	港幣 HK$
	港幣 HK$

	於2008年4月1日
	At 1st April 2008
	
	
	

	成本
	Cost 
	7,217,979 
	3,907,157 
	11,125,136 

	累計折舊
	Accumulated depreciation 
	(3,372,014)
	(1,355,414)
	(4,727,428)

	賬面淨值
	Net book amount
	3,845,965 
	2,551,743 
	6,397,708 

	
	
	
	
	

	截至 2009 年 3 月 31 日止年度
	Year ended 31st March 2009
	　
	　
	　

	期初賬面淨值
	Opening net book amount
	3,845,965 
	2,551,743 
	6,397,708 

	
	
	
	
	

	增添
	Additions
	18,482,913 
	1,646,172 
	20,129,085 

	出售
	Disposals
	         
	    
	

	
	
	
	
	

	- 成本
	- Cost
	(1,568,817)
	     -
	(1,568,817)

	- 累計折舊 
	-Accumulated depreciation 
	1,568,817
	    -
	1,568,817 

	折舊 （附註 16）
	Depreciation charge (note 16)
	(5,759,082)
	(1,388,332)
	(7,147,414)

	期終賬面淨值
	Closing net book amount
	16,569,796 
	2,809,583 
	19,379,379 

	
	
	
	
	

	於2009年3月31日
	At 31st March 2009
	
	
	

	成本
	Cost
	24,132,075 
	5,553,329 
	29,685,404 

	累計折舊
	Accumulated depreciation
	(7,562,279)
	(2,743,746)
	(10,306,025)

	賬面淨值
	Net book amount
	16,569,796 
	2,809,583 
	19,379,379 

	
	
	
	
	

	截至 2010年 3 月 31 日止年度
	Year ended 31st March 2010
	　
	　
	　

	
	
	
	
	

	期初賬面淨值
	Opening net book amount
	16,569,796 
	2,809,583 
	19,379,379 

	
	
	
	
	

	增添
	Additions
	20,513 
	730,339 
	750,852 

	出售
	Disposals
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	- 成本
	-Cost
	-
	(47,307)
	(47,307)

	
	
	
	
	

	- 累計折舊 
	-Accumulated depreciation 
	       -
	47,120 
	47,120 

	折舊 （附註 16）
	Depreciation charge (note 16)
	(6,193,393)
	(1,526,536)
	(7,719,929)

	期終賬面淨值
	Closing net book amount
	10,396,916 
	2,013,199 
	12,410,115 

	
	
	
	
	

	於2010年3月31日
	At 31st March 2010
	
	
	

	成本
	Cost
	24,152,588 
	6,236,361 
	30,388,949 

	累計折舊
	Accumulated depreciation                   
	(13,755,672)
	(4,223,162)
	(17,978,834)

	賬面淨值
	Net book amount
	10,396,916 
	2,013,199 
	12,410,115 

	
	
	
	
	


Depreciation expense of HK$7,719,929 (2009: HK$7,147,414) has been charged in administrative expenses.

6 Financial instruments by category

The ERB’s financial instruments include the following:
	
	
	 二零一零年
	    二零零九年

	
	
	2010
	2009

	
	
	港幣 HK$
	港幣 HK$

	財務資產－貸款及應收款，按攤銷成本
	Financial assets – loans and receivables at amortised cost
	
	

	按金及其他應收款
	Deposits and other receivables 
	11,079,194
	27,622,962

	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	

	應收入境事務處款項
	Amount due from the Immigration Department
	698,800
	11,468,000

	應收培訓機構款項
	Amounts due from training bodies
	267,176
	2,148,822

	原到期日超過三個月的短期銀行存款（附註9）
	Short-term bank deposits with original maturities over three months (note 9)
	4,026,527,000
	4,538,747,000

	現金及現金等價物（附註10）
	Cash and cash equivalents (note 10)
	240,433,036
	247,186,355

	
	
	4,279,005,206
	4,827,173,139

	財務負債－其他財務負債，按攤銷成本
	Financial liabilities – other financial liabilities at amortised cost
	　
	　

	
	
	
	

	應付培訓機構款項
	Amounts due to training bodies
	1,393,604
	2,173,088

	 應計款項及其他應付款
	Accruals and other payables 
	44,845,290
	62,877,627

	
	
	46,238,894
	65,050,715


7 Deposits, prepayments and other receivables
	
	
	二零一零年
	二零零九年

	
	
	2010
	2009

	
	
	港幣HK$
	港幣HK$

	租金及公用設施按金
	Rental and utility deposits
	4,783,966 
	4,721,416 

	應收利息
	Interest receivables
	4,920,675 
	22,329,109 

	應收課程費用
	Course fee receivables
	1,270,733 
	511,694 

	其他應收款
	Other receivables
	103,820 
	60,743 

	財務資產，信貸風險的最高承擔
	Financial assets, maximum exposure to credit risk
	11,079,194 
	27,622,962 

	預付款
	Prepayments
	20,385,867 
	11,340,633 

	
	
	31,465,061 
	38,963,595 

	減：非流動租金及公用設施按金
	Less: non-current rental and utility deposits
	(4,189,035)
	(3,506,610)

	流動部份
	Current portion
	27,276,026 
	35,456,985 


The deposits and other receivables do not contain past due and impaired assets. The ERB does not hold any collateral as security.

The carrying values of deposits and other receivables approximate their fair values as at 31st March 2010 and 2009 and are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

8 Amount due from the Immigration Department and amounts due from / (to) training bodies

The amounts due are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

The amounts due from the Immigration Department and training bodies do not contain past due or impaired assets.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of the receivable balances. The ERB does not hold any collateral as security.

The carrying values of the amounts due approximate their fair values as at 31st March 2010 and 2009 and are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

9 Short-term bank deposits with original maturities over three months
	
	
	二零一零年
	二零零九年

	
	
	2010
	2009

	
	
	港幣HK$
	港幣HK$

	原到期日超過三個月的短期銀行存款
	Short-term bank deposits with original maturities over three months
	4,026,527,000
	4,538,747,000

	信貸風險的最高承擔
	Maximum exposure to credit risk
	4,026,527,000
	4,538,747,000


The effective interest rate on these deposits is 0.47% (2009: 1.73%); these deposits have an average maturity of 181 days (2009: 182 days) and are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.
10 Cash and cash equivalents
	
	
	二零一零年
	二零零九年

	
	
	2010
	2009

	
	
	港幣HK$
	港幣HK$

	現金及銀行結存
	Cash at banks and in hand
	45,135,999
	137,619,964

	原到期日少過三個月的短期銀行存款
	Short-term bank deposits with original maturities of three months or less 
	195,297,037
	109,566,391

	
	
	240,433,036
	247,186,355

	信貸風險的最高承擔
	Maximum exposure to credit risk
	240,428,908
	247,185,361


The effective interest rate on the above short-term bank deposits is 0.12% (2009: 0.47%); these deposits have an average maturity of 73 days (2009: 23 days). The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

11 Employees Retraining Fund

The Employees Retraining Fund represents the initial funds contributed by the Government.

12 Accruals and other payables
	
	
	二零一零年
	二零零九年

	
	
	2010
	2009

	
	
	港幣HK$
	港幣HK$

	應計款項
	Accruals 
	44,845,290
	62,877,627

	預收課程款項
	Course fee received in advance
	406,042
	460,205

	僱員開支撥備
	Provision for staff costs
	5,599,000
	4,972,000

	樓宇復修成本撥備
	Provision for premises reinstatement costs
	4,038,000
	4,038,000

	
	
	54,888,332
	72,347,832


The carrying values of accruals and other payables approximate their fair values as at 31st March 2010 and 2009 and are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

13 Interest income
	
	
	二零一零年
	二零零九年

	
	
	2010
	2009

	
	
	港幣HK$
	港幣HK$

	培訓資金利息
	Interest on training funds subsidies 
	7,024
	42,380

	
	
	
	

	銀行存款利息
	Interest on bank deposits
	39,673,893
	114,104,630

	
	
	39,680,917
	114,147,010


14 Retraining allowances

In accordance with Section 21(4) of the ERO, a specified retraining allowance is payable to the trainees in respect of their attendance of training courses, subject to their eligibility as set out in Section20(1) of the ERO.

15 Training programmes and course expenses
	
	
	二零一零年
	二零零九年

	
	
	2010
	2009

	
	
	港幣HK$
	港幣HK$

	培訓資源中心
	Training resource centres
	15,030,083
	14,549,509

	實務技能培訓及評估中心
	Practical Skills Training and Assessment Centre
	5,763,860
	7,205,357

	「樂活一站」及「保健通」
	Smart living and Healthcare Massage Integrated Services
	12,373,597
	12,092,844

	宣傳及推廣計劃
	Promotion and publicity programmes
	14,515,633
	11,617,430

	培訓課程
	Training courses
	543,349,839
	339,868,540

	其他
	Others
	5,534,531
	3,534,519

	
	
	596,567,543
	388,868,199


16 Administrative expenses
	
	
	二零一零年
	二零零九年

	
	
	2010
	2009

	
	
	港幣HK$
	港幣HK$

	核數師酬金
	Auditor’s remuneration
	180,500
	198,020

	折舊（附註 5） 
	Depreciation (note 5)
	7,719,929
	7,147,414

	僱員開支（附註 18）
	Staff costs (note 18)
	63,434,350
	53,447,877

	辦事處營運租賃租金
	Operating lease rentals in respect of office premises 
	7,501,517
	6,518,691

	辦事處管理及清潔費用
	Office management and cleaning fees
	778,451
	761,481

	資訊科技設施及保安
	IT facilities and security
	1,568,941
	2,311,589

	其他
	Others
	6,072,721
	5,925,074

	
	
	87,256,409
	76,310,146


17 Other expenses

Other expenses represent the expenses incurred for the development, operation and maintenance of an on-line computer network system linking with training bodies.

18 Staff costs (including key management personnel compensation)
	
	
	二零一零年
	二零零九年

	
	
	2010
	2009

	
	
	港幣HK$
	港幣HK$

	薪金、津貼及約滿酬金
	Salaries, allowances and contract gratuities
	60,706,442
	51,234,371

	退休金支出 — 界定供款計劃
	Pension costs - defined contribution plans
	2,727,908
	2,213,506

	
	
	63,434,350
	53,447,877


19 Key management personnel compensation

The key management of the ERB refers to the 5 Directorate officers (2009: 4 Directorate officers) having authority and responsibility for planning, implementing and controlling the activities of the ERB. Their compensation included in staff costs is analysed as follows:

	
	
	二零一零年
	二零零九年

	
	
	2010
	2009

	
	
	港幣HK$
	港幣HK$

	薪金及津貼
	Salaries and allowances
	6,852,857
	5,731,588

	退休金支出
	Pension costs 
	533,713
	600,238

	約滿酬金的準備
	Provision for gratuities
	416,330
	289,335

	
	
	7,802,900
	6,621,161


20 Notes to statement of cash flows

(a) Net cash (used in) / generated from operating activities

	
	
	二零一零年
	二零零九年

	
	
	2010
	2009

	
	
	港幣HK$
	港幣HK$

	年度虧損/盈餘
	(Deficit)/surplus for the year
	(527,852,979)
	316,286,509 

	調整項目：
	Adjustments for:
	  
	  

	-折舊（附註5）
	- Depreciation (note 5)
	7,719,929
	7,147,414 

	-利息收入（附註13）
	- Interest income (note 13)
	    (39,680,917)
	(114,147,010)

	-物業、機器及設備的出售虧損（附註b）
	- Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (note b)
	187 
	             -

	營運資金變動：
	Changes in working capital:
	
	

	-按金、預付款及其他應收款
	- Deposits, prepayments and other receivables
	(9,909,900)
	414,577 

	-應收入境事務處款項
	- Amount due from the Immigration Department
	10,769,200 
	13,978,800 

	-應收 /（應付）培訓機構款項
	- Amount due from / (to) training bodies
	1,102,162 
	(371,133)

	-應計款項及其他應付款
	- Accruals and other payables
	(17,459,500)
	(38,416,219)

	營運（使用）/ 產生的現金淨額
	Net cash (used in)/ generated from operating activities
	(575,311,818)
	184,892,938 


(b) In the statement of cash flows, proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment comprise:
	
	
	二零一零年
	二零零九年

	
	
	2010
	2009

	
	
	港幣HK$
	港幣HK$

	淨賬面值
	Net book amount 
	187 
	-

	出售物業、機器及設備的虧損
	Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
	(187)
	    -

	出售物業、機器及設備的所得款
	Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
	       -
	       -


21 Operating leases

(a) Operating lease rentals

Total operating lease rentals in respect of office premises and training centres incurred during the year are analysed as follows:

	
	
	二零一零年
	二零零九年

	
	
	2010
	2009

	
	
	港幣HK$
	港幣HK$

	包含在培訓計劃及課程開支內
	Included in training programmes and course expenses
	
	

	-培訓資源中心
	- Training resource centre
	3,774,834
	4,013,279

	-實務技能培訓及評估中心
	- Practical Skills Training and Assessment Centre
	2,838,119
	2,977,647

	包含在行政開支內（附註16）
	Included in administration expenses (note 16)
	
	

	-辦事處
	- Office premises 
	7,501,517
	6,518,691

	
	
	14,114,470
	13,509,617


(b) Operating lease commitments

At 31st March, the ERB had future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of premises as follows:

	
	
	二零一零年
	二零零九年

	
	
	2010
	2009

	
	
	港幣HK$
	港幣HK$

	不超過1年
	No later than one year
	13,573,128
	13,591,364

	超過1年但不超過 5 年
	Later than one year and no later than five years
	12,344,453
	26,343,181

	
	
	25,917,581
	39,934,545


Monitoring Mechanism
Effectiveness of Training Courses
	Purpose of Evaluation
	Performance Measure
	Performance Indicator
	Benchmark

	•
Measure effectiveness of training courses

•
Monitor performance of training bodies (TBs)
	Placement results
	Placement rate*

•
regular courses
	70%

	
	
	Placement rate*

•
tailor-made courses
	80%

	
	
	Placement rate*

•
relevancy to training**
	60%

	
	Retention results
	Retention rate**

•
trainees retained in employment after 6 and 9 months upon training
	Nil

	
	Learning outcomes
	Course assessment
	For graduation, trainees must obtain an overall pass in the course assessments


Cost Effectiveness

	Purpose of Evaluation
	Performance Measure
	Performance Indicator
	Benchmark

	•
Measure efficiency in the utilization of ERB resources

•
Measure cost effectiveness of training courses
•
Monitor performance of TBs
	Utilization of training places
	Capacity utilization rate*
	85%

	
	Completion
	Attendance rate*
	80%

	
	
	Completion rate**
	80%

	
	Training cost
	Cost per trainee per hour
	Places allocation through competitive bidding


Customer Satisfaction

	Purpose of Evaluation
	Performance Measure
	Performance Indicator
	Benchmark

	•
Measure satisfaction of users towards training courses
	Satisfaction of trainees
	Course-end evaluation / complaints
	Nil

	
	Satisfaction of employers
	Survey results / complaints
	


The above figures will be analysed by class / course / TB / course type and the whole.

*
Key performance indicator

**
Currently not used as key performance indicator

COMMITMENMT FOR A BETTER FUTURE
Training and development is a long term commitment of society, irrespective of social changes, the demand for
training
and
development
persists. ERB has an inevitable task to align our service modes and modus operandi to cope with the changes. On top of continually expanding our networks and communication with various industries and stakeholders, and introducing more training courses in response to market needs, ERB has been strengthening our quality management and assurance systems to ensure the effective utilization of resources for nurturing manpower in different industries and sectors. This will support the continuous development of the economy of Hong Kong as a whole.
Statistics

Statistics of Training Courses

Number of Graduate Trainees

	Year
	Full-time Course
	Half-day Course
	Evening Course
	Total

	93-94
	7,355
	350
	3,205
	10,910

	94-95
	14,308
	9,856
	16,312
	40,476

	95-96
	13,273
	21,128
	24,385
	58,786

	96-97
	15,264
	17,335
	22,771
	55,370

	97-98
	18,425
	15,082
	22,125
	55,632

	98-99
	29,171
	16,078
	24,607
	69,856

	99-00
	37,661
	17,704
	22,791
	78,156

	00-01
	37,080
	19,724
	22,644
	79,448

	01-02
	45,990
	21,218
	25,262
	92,470

	02-03
	55,444
	23,487
	24,605
	103,536

	03-04
	51,735
	24,175
	22,685
	98,595

	04-05
	49,803
	28,456
	22,241
	100,500

	05-06
	49,910
	27,009
	20,075
	96,994

	06-07
	46,506
	23,732
	13,629
	83,867

	07-08
	43,231
	21,896
	10,419
	75,546

	08-09
	48,162
	20,703
	9,042
	77,907

	09-10
	55,912
	22,061
	16,315
	94,288


Proportion of Graduate Trainees

	Course Mode
	No. of Trainees
	Proportion %

	Full-time Placement-tied Course
	55,221
	58.6%

	Half-day Placement-tied Course
	614
	0.7%

	Full-time Non-Placement-tied Course
	691
	0.7%

	Half-day Non-Placement-tied Course
	21,447
	22.7%

	Evening Non-Placement-tied Course
	16,315
	17.3%

	Total
	94,288
	100%


Statistics of Placement-tied Courses

Proportion of Graduate Trainees of Placement-tied Courses

	Course Category
	No. of Trainees
	Proportion %

	Property Management & Security
	13,306
	23.8%

	Domestic Services
	10,072
	18.0%

	Healthcare Services
	4,422
	7.9%

	Business
	3,450
	6.2%

	Beauty Therapy
	3,233
	5.8%

	Hotel
	3,047
	5.5%

	Retail
	2,607
	4.7%

	Chinese Healthcare
	2,554
	4.6%

	Catering
	1,838
	3.3%

	Information & Communications Technology
	1,623
	2.9%

	Others
	9,683
	17.3%

	Total
	55,835
	100%


The above chart lists the top 10 course categories according to the number of trainees.

Graduate Trainees of Placement-tied Courses by Education Level

	Education Level
	No. of Trainees
	Proportion %

	No Schooling
	28
	0.05%

	Not Completed Primary Education
	921
	1.6%

	Completed Primary 6
	4,517
	8.1%

	Secondary 1 to 3
	20,926
	37.5%

	Secondary 4 to 5
	22,135
	39.6%

	Secondary 6 to 7
	3,744
	6.7%

	Tertiary Education
	3,564
	6.4%

	Total
	55,835
	100%


Graduate Trainees of Placement-tied Courses by Gender

	Gender
	No. of Trainees
	Proportion %

	Male
	16,122
	28.9%

	Female
	39,713
	71.1%

	Total
	55,835
	100%


Graduate Trainees of Placement-tied Courses by Age

	Age
	No. of Trainees
	Proportion %

	15-19
	2,430
	4.4%

	20-29
	7,594
	13.6%

	30-39
	13,633
	24.4%

	40-49
	17,940
	32.1%

	50-59
	12,570
	22.5%

	60 or above
	1,668
	3.0%

	Total
	55,835
	100%


Placement Rate of Placement-tied Courses

· Domestic Services 87.0%

· Hotel 84.9%

· Chinese Healthcare 84.7%

· Electrical & Mechanical Services 83.0%

· Insurance 82.9%

· Property Management & Security 82.1%

· Beauty Therapy 79.4%

· Healthcare Service 79.2%

· Design 78.6%

· Real Estate 78.2%

Total 79.5%

The above chart lists the top 10 course categories according to the placement rate.

Retention Rate of Placement-tied Courses

· Property Management & Security 72%

· Social Services 70%
· Healthcare Services 70%

· Construction & Renovation 70%

· Tourism 65%

· Beauty Therapy 63%

· Retail 62%

· Hotel 61%

· Catering 60%

· Business 58%

Total 65%

The above chart lists the top 10 course categories according to the retention rate (after 9 months upon training).
Industry Sector Profile of Graduate Trainees of Placement-tied Courses

	Industry Sector
	No. of Trainees
	Proportion %

	Community, Social and Personal Services
	19,981
	45.0%

	Real Estate, Property Management and Security Services
	7,297
	16.4%

	Wholesale and Retail
	4,649
	10.5%

	Catering
	3,322
	7.5%

	Finance, Insurance and Business Services
	1,467
	3.3%

	Transport, Storage and Communication
	1,458
	3.3%

	Hotel
	1,457
	3.3%

	Import and Export
	1,365
	3.1%

	Construction
	1,334
	3.0%

	Others*
	2,067
	4.7%

	Total 
	44,397
	100%


*
Includes Primary Production, Mining and Quarrying, Power, Textiles and Garments Manufacturing, and other Manufacturing Industries.

Statistics of Non-Placement-tied Courses

Proportion of Graduate Trainees of Non-Placement-tied Courses
	Course Type
	No. of Trainees
	Proportion %

	Generic Skills Training Courses - IT Applications
	24,202
	62.9%

	Generic Skills Training Courses - Workplace Languages
	7,488
	19.5%

	“Skills Upgrading Scheme Plus” Courses
	5,734
	14.9%

	Others
	1,029
	2.7%

	Total
	38,453
	100%


Graduate Trainees of Non-Placement-tied Courses by Education Level

	Education Level
	No. of Trainees
	Proportion %

	No Schooling
	25
	0.07%

	Not Completed Primary Education
	1,562
	4.1%

	Completed Primary 6
	4,652
	12.1%

	Secondary 1 to 3
	14,207
	36.9%

	Secondary 4 to 5
	13,528
	35.2%

	Secondary 6 to 7
	2,520
	6.6%

	Tertiary Education
	1,959
	5.1%

	Total
	38,453
	100%


Graduate Trainees of Non-Placement-tied Courses by Gender

	Gender
	No. of Trainees
	Proportion %

	Male
	8,864
	23.1%

	Female
	29,589
	76.9%

	Total
	38,453
	100%


Graduate Trainees of Non-Placement-tied Courses by Age

	Age
	No. of Trainees
	Proportion %

	15-19
	490
	1.3%

	20-29
	3,463
	9.0%

	30-39
	7,990
	20.8%

	40-49
	11,568
	30.1%

	50-59
	11,212
	29.2%

	60 or above
	3,730
	9.7%

	Total
	38,453
	100%


Appointed Training Bodies

1. Association for Engineering and Medical Volunteer Services

2. The Industrial Evangelistic Fellowship Limited

3. Yan Oi Tong Limited

4. Queen Elizabeth Hospital - Hospital Authority

5. Richmond Fellowship of Hong Kong

6. CityU Professional Services Limited

7. Construction Industry Council

8. Farida Hair & Beauty Education Centre

9. Heung To College of Professional Studies

10. School of Professional And Continuing Education, The University of Hong Kong

11. The Boys’ and Girls’ Clubs Association of Hong Kong

12. Hong Kong Workers’ Health Centre Limited

13. The Hong Kong Federation of Trade Unions

14. The Chinese University of Hong Kong - Tung Wah Group of Hospitals Community College

15. School of Continuing and Professional Studies, The Chinese University of Hong Kong

16. Li Ka Shing Institute of Professional and Continuing Education, The Open University of Hong Kong

17. The Mental Health Association of Hong Kong

18. Aberdeen Kai-fong Welfare Association Limited

19. Hong Kong Association for Democracy and People‘s Livelihood

20. Hong Kong Productivity Council

21. Hong Kong Federation of Women Limited

22. Hong Kong Association of Gerontology

23. Caritas - Hong Kong

24. Hong Kong Society for the Blind

25. The Hong Kong Federation of Youth Groups

26. School of Continuing and Professional Education, City University of Hong Kong

27. Hong Kong Institute of Technology

28. Hong Kong Red Cross
29. Hong Kong Travel & Tourism Training Centre Limited

30. The Baptist Convention of Hong Kong - Baptist Oi Kwan Social Service
31. Division of Continuing and Professional Education, School of Chinese Medicine, Hong Kong Baptist University

32. School of Continuing Education, Hong Kong Baptist University
33. International Social Service (Hong Kong Branch)

34. Hong Kong Young Women’s Christian Association

35. The Young Men’s Christian Association of Hong Kong

36. Hong Kong Federation of Women‘s Centres

37. Hong Kong College of Technology
38. HKIEd School of Continuing and Professional Education Limited

39. Management and Executive Development Centre, The Hong Kong Polytechnic University

40. Hong Kong Rehabilitation Power

41. The Hong Kong Society for Rehabilitation

42. The Scout Association of Hong Kong - The Friends of Scouting

43. The Society of Rehabilitation and Crime Prevention, Hong Kong

44. Hong Kong Federation of Handicapped Youth

45. Hong Kong Sheng Kung Hui Lady MacLehose Centre

46. Hong Kong Sheng Kung Hui Welfare Council

47. Hong Kong St. John Ambulance

48. The Hong Kong Confederation of Trade Unions

49. Hong Kong Employment Development Service Limited

50. Hong Kong Outlying Islands Women’s Association Limited

51. College of Nursing, Hong Kong

52. The Hong Kong Society for the Deaf

53. The Evangelical Lutheran Church of Hongkong

54. Christian Action
55. Methodist Centre

56. Yang Memorial Methodist Social Service

57. The Federation of Hong Kong and Kowloon Labour Unions

58. Hong Kong and Kowloon Electrical Engineering and Appliances Trade Workers Union

59. Vassar International Chinese Medical Society Limited

60. Neighbourhood & Worker’s Service Centre

61. New Life Psychiatric Rehabilitation Association

62. New Territories Association Retraining Centre Limited

63. S. K. H. Holy Carpenter Church Community Centre

64. St. James’ Settlement

65. Kwai Chung Residents Association
66. Kwai Chung Hospital - Hospital Authority

67. Princess Margaret Hospital

68. Monita Hair & Beauty Academy

69. Clothing Industry Training Authority

70. The Neighbourhood Advice-Action Council

71. Asia-Pacific Institute of Ageing Studies, Lingnan University

72. Lingnan Institute of Further Education

73. Occupational Safety and Health Council

74. Vocational Training Council

75. Hospital & Clinic Nurses Association

76. Management Society for Healthcare Professionals

Training bodies are listed according to the number of strokes in Chinese.

43/F, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 182 182

Fax: (852) 2369 8322

www.erb.org
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